2001

Herbert Burton and Florence Burton v. Alan H. Coombs, Carla H. Coombs, Four Seasons Motor Inn. Inc., and Four Seasons Motor Inn II, Inc. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF KIND OF CASE

This case is one wherein the Plaintiffs, HERBERT BURTON and FLORENCE BURTON, his wife, are seeking a money Judgment against Defendants, ALAN H. COOMBS, CARLA H. COOMBS, his wife, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., a Utah corporation, and FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN II, INC., a Utah corporation, as a result of an alleged breach of a management contract for the management of a motel complex in St. George, Utah, known as FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC. The Defendant, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC. seeks a money judgment against Plaintiffs on its Counterclaim on the basis of an alleged breach of the responsibilities imposed on the Plaintiffs to manage under the terms of said management contract.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The trial court, sitting without a jury, entered Judgment

in favor of Defendants, ALAN H. COOMBS, CARLA H. COOMBS, his wife, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, II, INC., of no cause of action against each of said Defendants on the Plaintiffs' Complaint, granted Judgment in the amount of \$21,333.00 principal, together with interest of \$1,050.00 together with attorneys' fees in the amount of \$10,000.00, for a total Judgment of \$32,383.00 in favor of the Plaintiffs and against Defendant FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., a Utah corporation, and the trial court denied the relief sought by the Defendants and each of them on their Counterclaim.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks a reversal of the Judgment awarded in favor of the Plaintiffs and against the Defendant, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., or in the alternative that the case be remanded to the trial court for a new trial. Appellant bases the request for reversal or remand on the grounds that the court erred as follows:

1. In finding that the Defendant breached the original management agreement;

2. The trial court erred in failing to find Plaintiffs in breach of the original management agreement;

3. The trial court erred in assessing damages against Defendant, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC. as follows:

- (a) There is no basis for the assessment of damages against this Defendant, as there is no basis in fact or law for determining a breach of contract;

- (b) The amount of damages assessed are excessive and no basis for the amount of Judgment entered by the court can be established from the facts or

evidence.

4. The finding by the trial court that the management agreement was a binding and effective contract between the Plaintiffs and the Defendant, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., was in error in that it was beyond the scope of the evidence, outside the scope of the pleadings and contrary to the request of any party to the action and not supported by the facts and evidence in the case.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

In November, 1971, Defendant, ALAN H. COOMBS, began construction on a forty (40) unit motel in St. George, Utah. In February of 1972, Defendant COOMBS formed a corporation known as FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN. On or about February 24, the corporation entered into an agreement with Plaintiffs, HERBERT and FLORENCE BURTON, wherein they agreed to purchase twenty per cent of the corporation stock for \$80,000.00. In addition, said agreement provided (1) that BURTONS would be given a Management Contract, whereby they could have the right to manage the forty unit motel; and (2) that BURTONS would have first option to invest in a second motel which was contemplated to be built directly across the street, with the same name. The terms of the Management Agreement provided that if the BURTONS ever decided to cease managing or if for cause, the corporation terminated their Management Agreement, the BURTONS could sell their Management Contract to a third party.

(The Court should note at this time that there is no issue raised as to the saleability or value of BURTON'S stock and Management Contract. Plaintiffs did not present any testimony that the value of their purchase was worthless or that Defendant defrauded them in any way. In fact,

Plaintiff testified the value had increased from \$80,000.00 to \$125,000.00 (Tr. 90 and 92). Defendant also was willing to give BURTONS their \$80,000.00 back, plus an additional \$10,000.00, (Tr. 30, FLORENCE BURTON; Tr. 98 and 113 COOMBS), if they were unsatisfied with the agreement.

The Court should also note that Defendant is not claiming that BURTONS should be deprived of their twenty per cent interest in the corporation because of their default. If the Court should find that BURTONS breached the Management Contract, only the Management Contract is affected.)

BURTONS began their employment as Managers in May of 1972, and a harmonious relationship existed between the parties for most of the following year. In November of 1973, COOMBS started construction on a second motel directly across the street on the North side, which was twice the size of the South side motel and which contained a Convention Center, restaurants, beauty shop and lounge. BURTONS were given the first option to purchase the Management rights to the larger motel, but declined to do so. Before the first motel was open, BURTONS and COOMBS agreed to call the second motel by the same name as the first motel in order to capitalize on advertising and so that the first motel could be associated with the Convention Center and restaurants.

A new corporation was formed under the name FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN II, INC., and a twenty per cent interest and Management Contract was sold to Mr. Derrill Larkin for \$160,000.00. It was the intent of FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN II, INC. and the BURTONS to operate the two motels separately even though the motels would have the same name and FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN I would be located physically on the South side of the street and FOUR SEASONS

MOTOR INN, II, INC. with the Convention Center and related facilities on the North side of the street. However, the parties entered into negotiations to determine if there would not be a mutual advantage to combining the two motels under one management agreement with the Plaintiffs as the Managers of the motels and Mr. Larkin, the General Manager for the Convention Center. The advantages to such an arrangement were discussed and included the following:

1. A reduction of responsibility for the BURTONS to allow for eight hour shifts and General Management and supervision responsibilities, rather than a twenty-four hour responsibility then imposed by the original Management Agreement for the operation of the motel on the South side.
2. An increase in salary to the BURTONS with a guaranteed \$1,500.00 per month.
3. The association of the smaller forty-unit motel on the South side with the larger motel and related facilities such as restaurant and Convention Center on the North side for a savings in advertising and related costs effected by the joint operation and thereby reducing the per-unit cost for such items.

Negotiations continued until the new motel was opened. At the insistence of Mrs. BURTON, Mr. COOMBS moved the telephone system to the larger unit motel to establish a central telephone system. Mrs. BURTON worked with the accountants to develop an accounting method for the joint operation. The BURTONS cooperated with COOMBS and other employees of FOUR SEASONS I and FOUR SEASONS II in establishing the combined management of the two motels. The parties coordinated their effort under the apparent assumption that a new contract between the

BURTONS and the corporation had been, or eventually would be, agreed upon. When the new motel was completed, the BURTONS assumed the management of the combined operation and acted as Managers from April 6, 1973, to April 27, 1973.

On April 27, 1973, Mrs. BURTON was visibly and audibly complaining to the other employees. (Tr. P. 47, BURTON; Tr. 94 COOMBS) The complaint of Mrs. BURTON was relative to the status of the new contract for the management of the two motels under one Management operation. Mr. COOMBS approached Mrs. BURTON in the presence of the other employees and said, "Florence, we can't have this dissention in the lobby or in the office where customers and other employees are being affected - please go across the street and Derrill (Mr. Larkin, the owner of twenty per cent of the North side motel) and I will come over and talk and we will get this matter settled." (Tr. 94, COOMBS)

Mrs. BURTON left to go to her apartment, which is located in the South side motel. Later, during the afternoon of the same day, Mr. COOMBS and Mr. Larkin went to the BURTONS' apartment to find the reasons why Mrs. BURTON was so upset and to see if they could not convince the BURTONS that they should continue as Managers. Mr. COOMBS began by asking, "What is the problem? What is it going to take to make you happy and to get this thing settled so you can go back to work and feel good about it?" (Tr. 95, COOMBS) (Tr. 28, line 29, BURTON) (Tr. 101, lines 9 through 11, LARKIN). This was a meeting held to explore alternative offers and to encourage the BURTONS to continue to act as Managers. There is conflicting testimony as to the terms Defendant offered BURTONS to induce them to stay, but all the testimony of all of the witnesses indicates that there were offers made back and forth to induce the BURTONS to stay. The BURTONS would

Digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, BYU.
Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

not agree to any of the terms offered by Defendant and refused to continue acting as Managers unless the corporation met their demands for more money. Before the meeting terminated, the parties agreed to hold a meeting the next day, in an effort to reach an agreement satisfactory to all parties.

The next day on April 28, BURTONS and COOMBS met again in the BURTONS' apartment. Mr. COOMBS testified that he stated at that meeting that if the BURTONS would come back and manage the motels, he would agree to an increase in their salary from \$1,500.00 to \$1,800.00 per month and also that Florence would not have to work. (Tr. 97, COOMBS). Mr. BURTON confirmed that the meeting was held for the purpose of working out "an equitable solution to the problem . . . there were offers made back and forth." (Tr. 72, BURTON) Mr. BURTON'S final demand was that if they continued in the joint operation management, that the BURTONS would require seven and one-half per cent of the total gross receipts. Mr. COOMBS indicated that this was excessive. The anticipated gross receipts would result in a monthly salary to the BURTONS of between \$3,500.00 and \$4,000.00.

Mr. COOMBS stated that he "couldn't obligate the motel to that kind of an obligation . . . let's just move you across the street. Would you then just come back and manage across the street?" (Tr. 98, lines 1 through 6, COOMBS) "I told them I would move the telephone system at my expense across the street (back to the South side) and that Mr. Larkin would continue to manage the eighty units and you continue to manage your forty units." (Tr. 98, lines 18 through 20, COOMBS) "I said, Okay, then, I will repeat this once more, will you not manage your forty-unit motel?" (Tr. 98, COOMBS)

BURTONS refused to return to the joint operation unless they received seven and one-half per cent of the gross from the joint

operation. They would not return to managing the forty-unit motel, unless the name was changed on the new North side eighty-unit motel. Mr. COOMBS then offered to pay the BURTONS \$90,000.00 for their interest and the BURTONS refused, asking \$120,000.00. (Tr. 99, COOMBS)

The meeting ended with BURTONS agreeing to exercise the clause in their Management Agreement wherein they would offer their interest for sale to a third party if they every wanted to cease acting as Managers. On May 1, a listing agreement was signed with a Salt Lake Real Estate firm offering the BURTONS' interest in the forty unit motel for sale for \$125,000.00. (Tr. 50-51, BURTON)

At the request of Mr. COOMBS, a meeting was arranged between Mr. COOMBS, Mr. Stewart Poelman, attorney for FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., the Plaintiffs and their attorney, David E. West, Esq. At the meeting Mr. COOMBS made the BURTONS four offers (Tr. 112-113, COOMBS).

1. Offer - work as Managers of the combined operation for a base salary of \$1,800.00 or four and one-half per cent of the gross (which would actually have netted BURTONS \$2,250.00 per month, estimated.)

BURTONS' Reply - Offer rejected.

2. Offer - Will you work as Managers of the forty-unit motel under the original contract signed in February, 1973?

BURTONS' Reply - BURTONS indicated that they would return to work as Managers of the forty-unit motel under the original contract only on three conditions:

- (a) That COOMBS changes the name of the new motel;
- (b) That COOMBS pay BURTONS' attorney \$10,000.00;
- (c) That COOMBS resign as President of FOUR SEASON

3. Offer - Will you take \$90,000.00 for your interest?

BURTONS' Reply - No, it is worth \$120,000.00 (Tr. 129, COOMBS)

4. Offer - Will you agree to place the property for sale? If you agree to sell the entire motel and/or the corporation to a third party, I would agree to give BURTONS twenty per cent of the profit or \$80,000.00, whichever was greater.

BURTONS' Reply - Refused (Tr. 129, COOMBS)

All offers were rejected and refused by the BURTONS and they thereafter refused to perform as Managers under the joint operation or the original Management Contract for the operation of the South side motel.

BURTONS filed this action, claiming Defendants breached the original Management Contract of February, 1972.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING THE DEFENDANT IN DEFAULT OF THE ORIGINAL MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT.

A. THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE TRIAL WAS NOT SUFFICIENT TO ESTABLISH A BASIS FOR A FINDING OF FACT BY THE TRIAL JUDGE THAT WOULD SUPPORT THE CONCLUSION THAT DEFENDANT - APPELLANT BREACHED THE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT.

Paragraph 9 of the Findings of Fact entered by the Court provides as follows:

" Defendant, FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., has breached its agreement with Plaintiffs by making it effectively impossible for them to continue to perform under their Management Contract."

This would actually appear to be a Conclusion of Law rather than a Finding of Fact. The trial court having refused the request of Defendant that the trial court set forth the actual elements and facts upon which the trial court relied in making the determination of breach. The trial court failed to state in written Findings of Fact one single Finding to support the conclusions of breach. Consequently, this court must look to the transcript of record and the memorandum decision of court in addition to the actual written Findings of Fact to determine what acts the Defendant committed that would constitute a breach of contract.

In the transcript of record there appears to be three statements upon which the trial court must have relied on in concluding that the Management Contract was breached by the Defendant. We respectfully submit that the evidence does not constitute a basis in law or fact upon which the trial court could have made such a conclusion and requests this court to examine said Findings and compare the same to the information set forth in the transcript of record.

It would appear that the statement hereinafter set forth is the primary basis for the trial court's decision, since the language used in the court's written Conclusions is very similar to that used in this statement (In Court proceeding February 10, Tr. 8, Lines 18-22)". . . That FOUR SEASONS MOTOR INN, INC., through Alan Coombs, its principal officer and moving agent, moved the effective management of the South side of the operation across the street to the North side in violation of the paragraph 1 under grant of management rights and duties which granted to the BURTONS the sole and exclusive right to operate and manage the FOUR SEASONS MOTEL on the property described in the exhibit." (South side motel)

It would appear that this statement in the transcript of the Judge's decision on February 10, 1975, is the basis for the alleged breach of contract. The language found in the Conclusions is similar to that used in this statement. However, a close reading of the same transcript four pages earlier (Page 4) reveals that this could not constitute a breach because the BURTONS cooperated in the move. On page 4 the Court made the exact opposite finding to the above statement on page 8. (Tr. 4, Line 9-19, Court proceeding) "The court further finds that the Plaintiffs knew or reasonably should have known that the Defendant intended to build a motel across the street; that they knew about it, were advised of it, had an opportunity to invest and participate in the construction; that they declined, that they agreed either tacitly or factually to the construction of the motel across the street; that they went over there voluntarily and entered into a working agreement with the Defendant." (emphasis added)

(Tr.5, Lines 203, Court proceedings) "The Court finds that shortly thereafter and while the (Burtons) were in operation of and managing the units, both the one that they were originally investors in and the one across the street, that the relationship broke down. The court doesn't find either party in default of the contract before that point." (emphasis added)

The breakdown occurred after the parties had voluntarily cooperated to move the offices to the North side in anticipation of managing the two motels jointly. Therefore, the court didn't find either party in default in moving the effective management of the South side across the street to the North side.

The finding set forth by the court on pages 4 and 5 clearly contradicts the finding later set forth on page 8 (Tr. of proceeding).

There is no written finding of fact indicating which of the contradicting statements that the court ultimately takes as true. We cannot readily assume that the court did intend to base its conclusion of breach by the Defendant by this act, (i.e., of moving the operating facilities from the South side to the North side). Furthermore, the trial court's finding that neither party was in default in moving the operating facilities from the South side to the North side was fully supported by the evidence and testimony at the trial. Neither the Plaintiff or the Defendant presented any evidence, testimony or claim that would suggest the BURTONS did not approve, support and assist in the moving of the operating facilities to the North side.

Since the Court found no fault with either party in the moving of the office to the North side, then what act did the Defendant commit that breached the Management Contract? We ask this court to turn its attention to page 5 of the transcript of court proceedings.

" . . . they were ordered back to their side of the street. That is a breach of the original agreement between the parties."

(Tr. 5, Lines 16-17, Court)

It is inconceivable that the trial court could consider this act by the Defendant COOMBS to constitute the act which made it "effectively impossible" for the BURTONS to perform their Management Contract. The original Management Agreement was to manage a forty-unit motel on the South side, wherein Plaintiff BURTON resided. When Mr. COOMBS "ordered" Mrs. BURTON back to the forty-unit motel across the street, he was, in fact, telling her to go to the side where she had a Management Contract. The only way he would be in

breach was to have ordered her not to go across the street. There is absolutely no evidence that Mr. COOMBS denied the BURTONS' access to the motel in which they had a Management Contract, but rather the BURTONS were merely asked to leave the North side in which they had no interest. The ordering of Mrs. BURTON to go across the street could only constitute a termination of the combined Management Agreement, an agreement which was never fully concluded. The court should also note that only Mrs. BURTON was asked to leave the North side lobby, and neither Mr. or Mrs. BURTON interpreted Mr. COOMBS' act as an intent to terminate their employment.

The true purpose of asking Mrs. BURTON to leave the North lobby was to relieve a situation which was disturbing normal business practices, and to give Mrs. BURTON time to cool off. The actions of the parties after the "order" to go across the street are probative in demonstrating that Mr. COOMBS' action could not be grounds for breach of contract, since there was no termination intended by COOMBS and no termination interpreted by the BURTONS. We would first ask the court to read Mr. COOMBS' testimony regarding his alleged ordering of Mrs. BURTON across the street. (Tr. 94, Lines 1-11, 20-25, COOMBS) Mrs. BURTON confirmed Mr. COOMBS' testimony that she was upsetting the help, (Tr. 46, Lines 1-5 BURTON) and visibly unhappy. (Tr. 28, Lines 27-28, BURTON) Mrs. BURTON did in fact go across the street and Mr. COOMBS and Mr. Larkin followed shortly thereafter. Mr. BURTON could not attend the full meeting because he was still working on the North side. (Tr. 29, Lines 26-28, BURTON) The testimony of Mrs. BURTON when Mr. COOMBS came across the street is as follows: (Tr. 28, Lines 29-30, BURTON) "The first words Alan said was, "What does it take to make you happy?" Mr. Larkin testifies to a similar statement by Mr. Coombs. (Tr. 161, Line 9-10, Larkin) "Mr. COOMBS

Digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, BYU
Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

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