2001

Herbert Burton and Florence Burton v. Alan H. Coombs, Carla H. Coombs, Four Seasons Motor Inn, Inc., and Four Seasons Motor Inn II, Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE EVIDENCE CLEARLY ESTABLISHED THAT APPELLANTS BREACHED THE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT.

After a very lengthy trial in this case the trial court made findings that the appellants breached the management contract with the Burtons, and that the Burtons had never done anything to breach their agreement. The entire

issue as to who breached the contract is a factual issue, and there was a sharp conflict in the testimony on many critical points. Appellants have attempted to convince the reviewing court that the lower court committed error by stating and arguing their version of the facts. However, on appeal the respondents are entitled to have the court consider all of the evidence, and every inference and intendment fairly arising therefrom, in the light most favorable to them. Toomers Estate vs. Union Pacific Railroad Company, 121 Utah 37, 239 P.2d 163. The reviewing court will not substitute its judgment for that of the trial court and is not concerned with a preponderance of the evidence but only with the question of whether there is substantial evidence to sustain the judgment. Leon Glazier and Sons, Inc. vs. Larson, 26 Utah 2d 429, 491 P.2d 226. On appeal, the evidence in favor of the respondent must be considered to the exclusion of contrary evidence. Hoggan & Hall & Higgins, Inc. vs. Hall, 18 Utah 2d 3, 414 P.2d 89. The court is further obliged to consider uncontradicted evidence in composite with all of the other evidence. Super Tire Market vs. Rollins, 18 Utah 2d 122, 412 P.2d 132.

In light of the above fundamental and basic rules of appellant review, the evidence supporting the findings and judgment of the lower court may be summarized as follows:

It is undisputed that the Burtons did, in fact, have a management contract. The terms of the contract were not in dispute. It was a thirty year contract and provided for compensation at the rate of 10% of the gross revenue of the operation. It was purchased by the Burtons, together with a minority stock interest of doubtful value, for the sum of \$80,000.00. It is further undisputed that the Burtons operated under the contract for a period of almost one year and that they did an excellent job as managers. From this point the evidence began to get conflicting as to the circumstances of the Burtons' termination.

If the trial court believed the testimony of the Burtons it appears clearly that there was a great deal of concern, apprehension, disagreement and unhappiness about the building of the second motel. These concerns were expressed on numerous occasions and they had been given assurances upon assurances that a satisfactory arrangement would be worked out. Up until the actual opening of the second motel the parties were still on friendly and amicable terms.

It was only after the second motel was actually opened that the Burtons came to realize that a satisfactory offer for the management of the combined operation was not going to be extended. Among other things, the Burtons were

simply not willing to give up a thirty year contract for which they invested their life savings of \$80,000.00 for a one year contract on the combined operation. There was a conflict in the testimony as to conversations to the effect that the one year was to be a trial period, after which the parties could revert back to the old contract - the Burtons strongly denied the existence of such conversations (T-68), while Coombs testified that such was discussed. The fact is, however, that the proposed agreement prepared by Coombs (Exhibit P-5) which Coombs requested the Burtons to sign and which he claimed at trial embodied the terms of a modified oral agreement, clearly provided for a one year term. It purports to be an "addendum" to the original management contract. It provides at paragraph 2 on page 1 that "the management agreement entered into by both parties on February 15, 1973, shall be incorporated into this agreement and shall apply to the operation of both units with the following exceptions". Then listed under the exceptions is the provision at paragraph 7 stating that, "this agreement shall continue for a period of one (1) year with the intent that it shall continue thereafter if the management proves to be satisfactory to all persons". Nowhere in this proposed contract does it say that the parties will revert

back to the old contract after a one (1) year trial period. Had the Burtons ever signed such an agreement, the above provisions would clearly modify the original management contract as to its terms. The Burtons, further, would have been forever precluded under the Parol Evidence Rule to claim that the parties had some oral agreement different from what was reduced to writing. The affirmative testimony of the Burtons was also to the effect that they were told not once but on many occasions when the negotiations started to break down that all they would ever get was a one (1) year contract, that he (Coombs) was eighty percent and they were twenty percent so that he could fire them at will, and that their management contract had no value. And so, when the final showdown came and the Burtons refused to accept the terms that were being forced upon them, Coombs told the Burtons they were both through and later ordered Mrs. Burton off the premises. Coombs' contentions that he then offered to sever the combined operation and reinstate Burtons to the management of the forty unit motel are flatly denied by the Burtons.

It is further clear from the evidence in this case that at the time the Burtons were fired by Coombs, the

physical circumstances were such that it would have been impossible for them to have continued their contract. By that time, the office had been moved across the street. All of the telephone equipment and office equipment had been moved, signs had been changed and installed designating that the office was across the street.

There was some testimony that after the blow up, Coombs asked Mr. Burton to come over across the street and work in the combined operation. Certainly Mr. Burton had no obligation to go over and work without a contract in an operation in which he had no ownership interest. Further, had he done so, the defendants would have claimed his working to be an acknowledgment of the existence of some new oral contract--which is the very position that they took throughout the whole case in attempting to imply a new contract from the two weeks help that the Burtons extended when the second motel was opened. The court might note on pages 3 and 5 of the Pre-Trial Order (R-142) that up until the time of trial defendants' position has always been that the management contract was modified, and that plaintiffs' breached the modified agreement. On page 5 of the Pre-Trial Order defendants specifically claim that the conduct of the parties

was a basis for establishing the modified contract. Nowhere in the Pre-Trial Order or in the other pleadings do the defendants contend that the amended agreement was only temporary and that the parties could later revert back to the first agreement.

The evidence in this case further showed that after the Burtons had been terminated Coombs leased all of the assets of Four Seasons Motor Inn, Inc. to Four Seasons Motor Inn II, Inc. (Exhibit P-8, PC-19) for a period of thirty years. At trial Coombs offered to cancel the lease, claiming the power to do so inasmuch as he owned eighty percent of both the lessor and lessee corporations. It is unreasonable to think that Burtons would have known this. They naturally would assume that a formal twenty year lease is a twenty year lease.

The hypocrisy of appellants' evaluation of the facts is further demonstrated by their tender of performance made shortly before the commencement of the trial (R-150). They have continually attempted to make it appear as though Burtons could have returned to their management contract at any time, yet even in open court when Burtons attempted to accept an offer of re-employment it was immediately refused (this point is discussed in detail under Point I of respondents' cross-appeal).

A recent case that may be of some significance to the court is Holley vs. Sullivan, 28 Utah 2d 3, 497 P.2d 630. In that case, plaintiff was employed by the defendant as a hostess and waitress in a cafe. She was fired under the following circumstances as quoted by the court:

"After a couple of months of seemingly harmonious relations, there was a falling out over the work of another employee, and the plaintiff called the defendant a "dirty double-crossing liar", whereupon the defendant said, "young lady, you can go home right now". In the next breath, he told her not to leave. However, she did leave, saying, "You fired me, and now you rehire me in less than two seconds, and you're not playing cat and mouse with me".

Under this evidence, the trial judge found that the plaintiff was fired; and while he may not have ruled as he did, yet we do not say that he could not so find."

The above merely illustrates the type of evidence upon which a finding of improper termination may be based. Plaintiffs place no special significance on this case, as the facts of plaintiff in the instant case are so much stronger than Holley that there can be no reasonable comparison.

Respondents would contend, not only that there is sufficient evidence to support the findings of the trial court, but that the total evidence clearly preponderates in favor of them. It is simply unreasonable to believe

that the Burtons would simply have walked off the job and risked losing their entire lifetime savings without being ordered to do so. The greater credibility lies with the respondents.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED NO ERROR IN FAILING TO FIND THAT RESPONDENTS BREACHED THE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT.

Point II of appellants' brief is filled with statements of fact that are disputed. The question of whether appellants, or whether the respondents, breached the management contract is a factual issue and Burtons' responsive argument as to the factual issues is fully covered under Point I of this brief.

It may again be significant to note, however, that appellants' argument under Point II is entirely inconsistent with the claims that were made in the trial court. In the pleadings in Pre-Trial Order (R-140) it has always been the position of appellants that the original management contract was modified by a subsequent oral agreement and that the Burtons breached the new agreement (not the old), by refusing to manage the combined operation of the two motels. Now that the trial court has made findings that no new agreement was ever made between the parties (R-284), the

appellants make an about face and claim that it was the original contract that was breached by the Burtons. This is but a typical example of how the appellants have continually vacillated their position, to fit the expediency of the moment, and have kept the Burtons in a continual state of frustration. It is little wonder that the trial court didn't think much of the appellants' credibility.

CROSS-APPEAL

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO FIND THAT THE DEFENDANTS WERE BOUND BY THEIR PARTIAL SETTLEMENT OFFER WHICH WAS ACCEPTED IN OPEN COURT.

The facts upon which respondents rely for their cross-appeal are not included in their statement of facts and will therefore be stated herewith. Approximately one week before the trial, the defendants tendered an offer to the plaintiffs which was put in the form of a formal pleading and filed in the case (R-150). The pleading was entitled "Reaffirmation of Tender of Performance" although Burtons evidence was to the effect that such an offer had never been previously made. Under the terms of the written offer, the defendants agreed to the following:

- (a) To reinstate the plaintiffs in their management contract.

- (b) To change the name of the convention center and motel operated across the street by Four Seasons Motor Inn II, Inc.
- (c) To perform whatever acts are required to sever the two motels and allow the plaintiffs to properly perform under their management contract.
- (d) To permit all parties to continue to pursue without prejudice any claims against the other to the date of acceptance of the tender.

During the course of the trial counsel for the defendants on three occasions made reference to the offer and made representations to the court that it was available for acceptance by the plaintiffs even during the trial (unfortunately the oral arguments of counsel in making these representations were not reported, (T-3,26,141)). Burtons had not responded to the offer and had proceeded through trial on a theory of anticipatory breach. That is, they claimed that they were entitled to damages over the full unexpired period of the management contract. Plaintiffs proof of damages was to this effect. They called an expert witness Dr. Boyd Fjeldsted, a consulting research economist from the University of Utah Economic Business and Research Department to testify on the subject of damages. Dr. Fjeldsted made a very scholarly study and concluded that after taking into consideration the projected future receipts of the motel,

the value of the furnished apartment to the managers, reductions for present worth, and additional reductions for age based upon motel industry statistics, that the total damages to Burtons on an anticipatory breach theory was \$237,760.00 (See T-112-134).

After plaintiffs had rested their case, the court met with counsel in chambers. He did not make any rulings, nor did he tell counsel how he was going to rule, but suggested that the parties ought to get the case settled. In following the suggestion of the court, plaintiffs decided to accept defendants' offer. They thereupon re-entered the courtroom and made the following statement on the record (T-141):

"Now, then, the court will recall Civil No. 4940. Counsel are present as is the parties, are you ready to proceed?

Mr. West: Yes, your Honor. I have a matter which I would like to present at this time to the Court. Following our discussion in chambers with the Court we have met with counsel and discussed this matter with our clients and at this time, your Honor, we would like to refer to the Court the formal tender of performance which is in the file, dated October the 3rd of 1974, it would have been filed last week, and at that time the defendants in this case made a tender of performance where, and I might just review this,

(The document was then read in its entirety into the record)

At this time, your Honor, the defendants or the plaintiffs in this case make an unconditional acceptance of this tender that has been proposed and that counsel has represented throughout the trial. We will go back and resume the management, so it would be our position at this time, then, that this is without prejudice as far as any other claims that we might have, and so the only issue, as I see it, at this point, would be the damages in the interim period, what they are and if in fact we are entitled to damages during that period."

Mr. Lybbert then immediately repudiated the offer after which the following additional record was made:

"The Court: Well, the Court is advised of the statement by Mr. West in behalf of the plaintiffs in this case, they accept unconditionally in form and content your reaffirmation of tender of performance filed in this case and I take it at the time that you would like to withdraw that; on the other hand, it is under advisement and the Court is advised of your position at this juncture in the lawsuit, Mr. West. And so the record is clear, the Court, and the record should show that the Court did in fact call counsel into chambers and off the record and in an effort to encourage the parties in this case to settle their differences if they could at this juncture in the lawsuit, at least indicated some of the views of the Court on some of the issues and state of the proof. However, Mr. West and Mr. Lybbert, Mr. Jackson, Mr. Poelman, you all agree with the Court that the Court advised you, don't misinterpret the statements of the Court, the Court didn't intend that to be any ruling but just to assist you, if it could, in reaching some settlement among yourselves, and that is correct, isn't it, Mr. West?

Mr. West: Yes, your Honor, I understand. I don't make any claim that the Court made any ruling in Chambers or that the Court indicated how the

Court would rule on the issues, and as far as our acceptance of this tender is concerned it's been represented right in this courtroom not once but on at least three occasions that I can remember by Mr. Lybbert himself that that offer is outstanding, it is still outstanding, it remains outstanding throughout the course of this trial and it has never been--I would represent to the Court that it's never been revoked and that our acceptance is an unconditional acceptance."

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